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Chairman Bartow: Good evening everyone and welcome to the 
February meeting of the Town of Milton Planning Board.  

 
1. Pledge to the Flag 

Mr. Collins would you please lead us in a pledge to the flag. 

2. Chairman announcement(s) 

I have a few announcements this evening.  This is our first meeting 
on the second Wednesday of the month.  I know there was some 
confusion regarding submittal deadlines, so the staff did allow filings 
up until last Wednesday.  Patti Cunniff will be posting a revised 
schedule of meetings and our deadlines of materials to be filed two 
weeks prior to our meeting.  We will be back on Board for March. 
 
You all should have received your 2022 disclosure statement which 
needs to be completed and notarized and submitted to the Clerk 
ASAP. 
 
Also, Tina Blanchard who has been our Secretary for the past few 
years is taking a new position within the Milton Town Courts.  She 
will be leaving today.  I personally want to thank Tina for her work 
for us and say that she will be missed.  Patti will be the Secretary to 
the Planning and Zoning Boards and providing administrative 
support to the Building and Zoning Department. 
 
That’s all I have for now.  Does any other Board member have 
anything they would like to share or announce? 

 
3. Approval of minutes from January 19, 2022  

Our first order of business this evening is approval of our January 
Board meeting Minutes. I will entertain a Motion to approve the 
Planning Board minutes for the January 19, 2022, board meeting; 
First; Mr. Whittel Second; Mr. Collins any discussion or changes 
to the minutes as drafted: please Poll the Board.  Mr. Marsicano Yes, Mr. 
Lebarron Yes; Mr. Collins Yes; Ms. VanDeinse Yes; Ms. Stevens Yes; Mr. Whittel Yes; 
Chairman Bartow Yes 
 

4. Public Comment 



 

3 
 

Chairman Bartow: At this point we will open the meeting to 
comments from the public. Please note that we do have a Public 
Hearing for the Major Subdivision at 240 Greenfield Ave. So, if you 
have comments on that project please wait until we start the 
hearings so your comments will be on the record. 
 
We continue to have both virtual and in-person opportunities for 
comments so I would ask that if you are Zooming with us and want to 
make a public comment, please use the hand wave feature, or submit 
via the Q&A button and alert us to your interest in commenting. If 
you have dialed in on the phone and would like to make a comment, 
please text Bill Lewis at 518-376-1831 and provide him your name 
and interest in making a comment. 
 
I would also ask that we are limiting individual comments to 3 
minutes and for commentors to try and avoid redundant comments. 
If you have written comments, please summarize them and if you 
would like you can leave a copy with us, and we will share them with 
all board members. 
 
Public comment opened at 7:03. 
 
Mr. John Mancini – 599 Plummer Road: Here to address the agenda 
item regarding Livestock animals.  I am going to address the current 
state of the law and why I am supporting the amendment and why it 
needs to be changed.  The law in its current standing is anti-farming 
and ranching.  I am focused on a R2 district, it allows one livestock 
animal per 2 acres of land. It treats all levels of livestock equally.  I 
think it needs to be addressed along with other issues.  We are 
addressing herd animals; they typically don’t do well alone.  Also, 
animal welfare issues should not be address in land use zoning 
provisions.  We need to trust our farmers and ranchers.  We can 
speculate some of the horrible things that can happen but if we want 
to continue to see farming and ranching in Milton, we need to trust 
them.  My family is very involved within the agriculture life.  I am 
concerned if we don’t address this and support our farmers, 
eventually there will not be an agriculture world in Milton for our 
children.  I don’t think this proposal needs to be studied or have a 
committee, that would be the way to kill the proposal.  I ask you to 
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consider this proposal carefully and see it from a farmer and ranches 
perspective.  This is an outdated law and it’s time to change it.   
 
Mr. Harry Ungeheuer – 3 Hayes Drive: My property is both in the 
town of Milton and Saratoga.  I am here to speak about a project at 
405 Geyser Road.  The project does not follow existing code and 
Zoning in Milton.  All the building close to this project are wood 
framed construction and shingled roof.  The Town Center codes 
suggest that any new construction should conform to what is already 
there, this building does not conform.  I am not asking that this 
project be put on hold, but I am asking that it conform to our current 
zoning and code.  Also, this project does not show any buffer 
included in the plan, this is important due to the set back that is 
being granted.  Code says that this should not be granted.  Please 
note that this project is underway and there is no permit in place.  
Major mistake on the town of Milton.  I am asking for is that existing 
zoning and code be followed, this is for the benefit of the community, 
its not for individuals or builders. It’s for the community. Keep the 
community moving forward in the right direction.   
 
Public comment closed at 7:17pm. 
 

5. 7:05 pm. Continuation for Public Hearing- Cottage Hill Town Homes- Proposed 

Residential Major Subdivision. 240 Greenfield Ave 190.-2-14 

Chairman Bartow: Next, we have the continued review and re-
opening of the public hearing for the major subdivision at 240 
Greenfield Avenue.  
 

We have well over forty documents on this project and I will not list 
all of them. New for this month are: 

1. Major Subdivision application dated 7/6/21 
2. Cover Letter dated 7/7/21 
3. Full EAF Part 1 dated 7/6/21 
4. Agricultural Data Statement dated 7/1/21 
5. Subdivision Sketch Plat dated 7/6/21 
6. 8/5/21 letter from Timothy and <Elaine Brown 
7. 8/18/21 email from Anne McDonough 
8. Letter dated 8/18/21 from Victor and Cynthia Madcharo 
9. Email dated 9/11/21 from Dan Penny 
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10. 9/12/21 letter from Michael and Kathleen Wanerka 
11. 9/12/21 letter from Martina Bantham 
12. 10/4/21 letter from Anne McDonough 
13. Revised FEAF dated 10/6/21 
14. 10/6/21 conveyance letter from EDP 
15. Response to MJ Engineering comments from July 6, 2021, 

dated 10/6/21 
16. Stormwater Narrative dated September 2021. 
17. SWPPP Dated October 2021 
18. Subdivision Preliminary Plats dated 10/6/21 
19. Several letters/emails from surrounding property owner 

commenting the project. 
20. Waiver request for >20 lots on a dead-end/cul-de-sac dated 

10/19/21. 
21. 11/9/21 letter from NYSDEC Region 5 signing off on lead 

agency  
22. Memo dated 11/10/21 from Tom & Kathy Burke 
23. Memo dated 11/11/21 from Tom & Kathy Burke 
24. 11/16/21 letter from Community Emergency Corps 

indicating they had no concerns of the cul-de-sac 
25. November letter from Ballston Spa Fire department stating 

they had no concerns with the cul-de-sac.  
26. SEQRA Lead Agency sign off from Kevin Kenyon NYS DOH 
27. Letter dated 11/18/21 from Saratoga County DPW sign-off 

on Lead Agency 
28. Letter dated 11/19/21 from Saratoga County Planning 

Board stating no significant county-wide or intermunicipal 
impacts. 

29. Correspondence dated 11/19/21 from NYS DOH sign off on 
lead agency 

30. Memo dated 11/20/21 from Judith Snyder 
31. Memo dated 11/22/21 from Tom Burke 
32. Letter dated 11/22/21 from NYS DEC regarding a 

freshwater wetland determination. 
33. Memo from Anne & Eric McDonough dated 11/24/21 
34. Letter dated 12/1/21 from Gilbert VanGuilder Land 

Surveyor regarding wetlands delineation. 
35. Email from Jackie Pitts, Vanguilder Land Surveying, 

regarding ACOE wetland size. 
36. Memo from Kathleen & Michael Wanerka dated 12/13/21 
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37. Email dated 12/13/21 from Dan Perry. 
38. Memo dated 12/14/21 from Anne & Eric McDonough 

regrading ACOE wetlands 
39. Memo dated 12/14/21 from Anne & Eric McDonough 

noting “all proposed projects are not good” 
40. Letter from MJ Engineering dated 12/14/21 with 

Comments and FEAF Parts 2 and 3  
41. Email from Leigh Keneston dated 12-14-21 
42. Email dated 12/16/21from Engineer Joel Bianchi with final 

versions of the FEAF Parts 2 and Findings. 
43. A completed FEAF Part 2 with the identified potential 

environmental impacts. 
44. Completed and signed FEAF Part 3 and supporting findings 

noting the Milton Planning Board as Lead Agency has 
determined that the project will have no significant adverse 
environmental impacts and therefore an environmental impact 
statement will not be prepared. This has been filed with DEC 
and all involved agencies. 

45. A traffic assessment for 240 Greenfield Avenue dated 
November 11, 2021. 

46. Correspondence from Michael and Kathleen Wanerka dated 
January 18, 2022. 

47. Burke email regarding minutes 1/19/22 
48. Burke email regarding Opposition to project 1/19/22 
49. Burke email summarizing December and January comments 

1/19/22 
50. Email exchange between Dannible, Bianchi and Bartow 

regarding outstanding issues 1/31/22 
51. EDP response to MJ January 31 Comments 2/2/22 
52. SWPPP Revised January 2022 
53. Stormwater Narrative Revised January 2022 
54. Site Plan Revisions 2/2/22 
55. Architectural Samples 2/22/22 
56. Cover Letter 2/22/22 
57. Email from Michael & Kathleen Wanerka 2/7/22 
58. Correspondence from Anne & Eric McDonough 2/9/22 
59. Correspondence from Joe Dannible 2/9/22 

 
Does the applicant or their representative have any updates for the 
Board? 
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Dan Dannible:  I am the consultant for Cottage Hill Town Homes.  
Started this project in the summer of 2021.  The planning for this 
project has been ongoing for several month.  In October 2021 there 
was a waiver granted for more than 20 units.  We have submitted 
plans on several occasions, we have been in front of the board over 6 
times.  We are going to ask the Board to close the Public Hearing 
tonight.  We have given ample amount of time for the public to 
address their concerns.  We are also going to ask the Board to move 
forward with an approval for this project.  This project is about .25 
miles north of Northline Road.  Our property is 19 acres.  All 
properties surrounding us are developed under R1 Zoning.  We have 
identical densities to each development, developed under the same 
laws.  We are in full compliance of all town, state, and federal 
regulations.  We have provided documentation on all subjects of this 
project. We believe the community that we are going to build, will be 
as strong as its surrounding neighborhoods.  I know this is personal 
project to many that are here right now.  To the North of us, there are 
15 residential lots.  We are proposing 13 or 14 more sites on .5 acre 
lots, 100 feet of frontage, all compliant with regulations.  We do have 
a single access point on Greenfield Ave.  Saratoga DPW has agreed 
that is an appropriate location for a single curb cut to the property.  
We will work on drainage as we get closer to progressing with this 
property.  Water service will be from Carlton Hallow.  We have had 
traffic accessed. One of the issues that has come to light is the 
wetlands on the property.  EDP has delineated the wetlands in July.  
Having discussions with the Army Corp of Engineers but there is a 
lack of reply.  When they didn’t reply we brought in a 3rd party 
consultant and their response was that our plans reflect the correct 
wetlands with a 15-foot buffer. We will not be disturbing actual 
wetlands or reported wetlands, because of this, the Army Corp is 
under no obligation to respond to us.  We plan to build houses with 
different roof lines and other fenestration to make the homes 
different.  Mail kiosk will be on lot 25 with an easement and pull off 
area.  A HOA will own this kiosk area and maintain it.  There will be 
Storm Water management under DEC regulations.  Buffers have been 
a discussion; most areas will be about 30 of vegetation.  We are 
consistent with adjacent properties.   We would like to move forward 
with this project and close the Public Hearing.  
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Joel Bianchi: I would suggest that they do not disturb more than 5 
acres at a time.   
 
Mr. Dannible:  We agree with that and will not disturb more than 5 
acres at one time.   
 
Mr. Whittel:  Any fencing around the storm Water?   
 
Mr. Dannible:  We are not, this property will be dedicated to the 
Town.  This area will not hold water for longer than 45 hours.   
 
Chairman Bartow: There being no further comments from the 
Board at this time, I will now re-open the public hearing. Please limit 
your comments to 3 minutes. If you have written comments, please 
provide them to the Secretary for the record and summarize them.   
 
I would also ask that everyone allow individuals to present their 
comments without any disturbance. I would also note that this is not 
a “question and answer” period for this project. This is the opportunity 
for the public to make comments of a substantive nature relative to 
the standards or our subdivision and zoning regulations, SEQRA, and 
the nature of the project.  
Open Public Hearing:  7:46 pm 

 

Dan Penny – 3 Woodland Court:  I have submitted 3 emails, outlining my 
concerns regarding the 240 Greenfield development. I find a number of 
responses from the EDP correspondence lacking detail. As this project 
moves forward it is importance that responses are detailed on how this 
project will progress, this ensures that if there are issues people are 
held accountable.  Here are specifics contained in the February 
2nd correspondence.  Buffer along Greenfield. Deed restrictions are not 
proposed. If deed restrictions are not proposed the owners can cut 
down all buffers if they would like.  Mail kiosk. Where is it going to go, 
what are the measurements.  It’s possible that the number of homes 
could change based on the size of kiosk.  Our major concerns are the 
construction that will be conducted over a principal aquafer. The Town 
has not addressed this issue, nor have they had the builder address this 
issue. We all need a written response that any negative impact on our 
water quality will be the responsibility of the Town or the builder.  I 
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may have missed it, but where are the fire hydrants are going to be 
placed.  As you review the rest of the document you see several 
responses that read “comment noted” “note added” or “will be provided 
on final subdivision plan”. Does this allow them to add things after a 
plan has been approved?  Drainage and storm water, are sump pumps 
are required? Also, what protection are the current residents getting so 
we don’t end up with flooded basements and yards? It will be 
interesting to see if this is another waiver or decision made benefitting 
the builder instead of protecting the residents.  I understand the waiver 
granted for 27 lots, but this does not mean the Town has to approve a 
27-homes.  

Elizabeth Beck – 311 Jatski Drive:  I disagree with Mr. Dannible that this 
project is compliant with all laws.  Milton Town laws allows 19 homes in 
a development if there is only one entrance, that’s the law.  The Zoning 
Board approved a waiver to increase the number of homes.  They 
should not have done this, they failed at their job and now the Planning 
Board should fix it.  The applicant claimed hardship, there is no 
hardship.  RJ Taylor purchased the property knowing the restrictions on 
this parcel, he submitted a plan that is 42% larger than the law allowed.  
I am asking the Planning Board to do the right thing.  Have the builder to 
go back to the drawing board and amend the plans and build 19 homes.   

Katherine Burk – 1 Woodland Court: This whole process has been 
complicated and confusing.  Due to the way our land is situated, we will 
have 3 houses in our backyard with little buffer.  Many people have 
written concerns to the Board, these concerns go back to one main 
issue, density.  In the past my family and I lived in a development like 
the one being proposed.  Once the development clear cut the trees, noise 
and privacy became an issue.  Before, we purchased our current 
property we inquired about the property on Greenfield Ave.  We learned 
that the Town has laws that would limit the amount of building on this 
parcel.  By granting the waiver, you got rid of the insurance for us that 
this development and density would be limited.  I’m asking everyone, 
including the builder, let’s find a balance that everyone can be happy 
with.   This project is not consistence with other neighboring 
developments.  The application that was originally submitted never had 
19 houses on it, it has been above the what the code allows.   
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Eric McDonough – 318 Jatski Drive: I reviewed the response letter from 
EDP.  A lot of work has gone into the project and I would like to focus on 
the wetlands.  It was said that the wetlands were delineated on July 1st.  
That was on the first proposed plan as the approximate location of the 
Army Corp Engineers wetlands and it measured at 425 square feet.  If 
the survey was done accurately, why is it an approximant location?  
There is no information in the delineation telling me what was found 
when they performed this.   On November 15, I met with Bill Lewis to 
show him the map I received when I purchased my home, it shows the 
wetlands and how they extend over these parcels.  On November 30, 
Gilbert VanGuilder (land surveyor) came to the property to survey it, 
the temperature was 30 degrees.  They went out, studied the land, did 
some tests, and came up with the exact same area that the builder came 
up with.  I question this.  Some wetlands stand out due to the swampy or 
wet look of them. When they are wet, it is considered a growing season.  
During a non-growing season some wetlands may not stand out, but 
they still exist.  When the survey was done in November, that was not a 
growing season.  The wetlands cannot be properly surveyed during a 
non-growing season.  If the preliminary plans indicate that there are 
wetlands on the parcel you should hire an Environmental Consultant 
and conduct a formal survey that flags all areas.  Gilbert VanGuilder 
went in and delineated the area without surveying the area.  The order 
is wrong.  You look at the area first, see what is there and then create 
the delineation and submit the report to the Army Corps.   The builders 
document say that they sent in a request and it will not be done in April 
2022.  I thought this was already done. This project cannot be approved 
or go forward until the Army Corps identifies these wetlands.  The Army 
Corp is the only regulatory agency that is authorized to determine 
presence or absence of federal regulated waters.  That has not occurred.  
I don’t see any reason why you cannot continue to work with the Army 
Corp of engineers to obtain the final approval.           

Ann McDonough – 318 Jatski Drive: From the October minutes, Mr. 
Danible is quoted that he knew about a small area of wetlands.  When he 
was asked by the Board what his plan to stop residents from cutting 
back all the trees to the property line.  He said that he couldn’t stop 
homeowners from doing that, they could develop their land any way 
they want to.  On my lot, I have a no cut deed restriction.  Please put 
some protection in.  A conservation easement could be added.  Hardship 
has been talked about.  This parcel is 18.9 acres and Rowland Streets 
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project is 41 acres, they have 2 cul-de-sacs with 1 house over code. This 
development is going to have 1 cul-de-sac with 10 lots over.  You need 
to apply restrictions to this plan.  I drew up a plan for 240 Greenfield 
with 10 houses that would respect the neighbors.  The builder should 
come up with another plan.  We have talked about many issues within 
this project, I don’t think that the Board has asked the right questions to 
the builder and is not helping the residents.  The wetlands need to be 
delineated by the Army Corp before this project moves forward.   

Mr. Penny: I see this property as a first responders’ nightmare.  The one 
thing that I don’t see on these plans is fire hydrants.  It would be nice to 
know how many hydrants there are and where they are located.   

Ms. Beck:  Why does the self-imposed hardship of the builder take 
president over the hardship of an entire neighborhood and the 
community.  The traffic that this will cause is going to be a nightmare.  
Please reject this and go back to the drawing board.   

Thomas Burk – 1 Woodland Court (via Zoom):  Mr. Dannible reference 
27 lots, the waiver also says 27 lots.  Are we looking to build 27 homes 
on 29 lots? Are there 27 lots or 29 lots? 

Chairman Bartow:  Two lots are dedicated to the Town for stormwater, 
they are not subjected to the same legislation.  Our zoning law says that 
you can build on .5 acre, they will have 27 homes.     

Mr. Burk:  That is not what it says.  The document requested says 27 
lots.  The only thing that ever said 27 homes is when Mr. Whittle made a 
motion for 27 homes.  I’m confused, how we must follow all the rules, 
but the words and rules don’t have to be followed by the Board.  I have 
submitted my concerns and spoke at these meetings and have not had 
my questions answered.  I am requesting that the Board review all my 
documents and answer my questions. Drainage is a concern, what is the 
builder going to do to prevent drainage issues? Also, what can be done 
to give us noise, light, and visual barriers between the homes.  Traffic, 
when the sensor was put out, it didn’t track the cars that avoided that 
area due to the traffic.  The waiver was granted incorrectly, there are no 
hardships for this parcel, no one has given any real hardships, including 
the Board.  The current code should be followed.  The fire department 
letter said that they would be happy to review the drawings in the 
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future when they are complete not that they approved.  Respectfully, I 
request that this project not get approved, send the builder back to the 
drawing board.  They should provide and justify us with financial 
information of why they must build more than 19 homes.  The 
justification should include examples of what happened after they 
purchased the property that is causing them hardship.  This should be 
required.  They purchased knowing all the rules, they should have to 
follow them.  

Ms. Lee Keneston – 16 Birchtree:  I am not in favor of this project.  The 
number of homes is disturbing.  We are the 2nd owner of our home and 
when we moved in, we had a 3 year old son, we found out quickly that 
Birchtree is a very busy street.  I’m sure that adding more families to 
this area will increase the traffic on our street.  In my backyard we have 
a displaced wetland it is from the builder that build our home.  For the 
builder to increase the number of homes, he had to move this wetland 
into our backyard.  So, there are more wetlands of concern.  When I look 
at this, I think about the winters, plowing and the incredible amount of 
salt that is going to go into the water source and affect the quality.  I 
dispute the survey that has been done, I think it is inaccurate.  If it turns 
out that the survey is incorrect, I am concerned because they would be 
taking our land.   

Chairman Bartow:  Have you been able to get your land surveyed, to find 
out which deed is correct?  

Ms. Keneston: No.  If I need to have one done, I can.   

Chairman Bartow:  You are going to want to get some confirmation on 
the property lines.  If there is a discrepancy, we will need to know.   

Kate Wanerka – 5 Woodland Ave:  You do represent the community and 
what is best for Milton and the residence.  I have not heard one resident 
in favor of this project.  I would hope that you would take that into 
consideration. That is your job as member of this committee.   

Ms. McDonough:  In addition to the survey being done correctly, in my 
deed we have restrictions on our land.  I expect that you will be looking 
for some type of documentation for whoever purchases the lots.  They 
should be held accountable as I am, to protect these lands.  You need to 
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make sure this accompanies the Army Corp of Engineers certified 
survey.   

 Mr. Keniry:  I think that we need to say that the Town Board did not act 
on changing the Town law.  They did not disapprove or approve the law, 
they just did not act on it.   

Chairman Bartow:  Is there any comments from the Board?  

Mr. Dannible: Mr. Chairman I can respond to any comments that the 
board has.  There is a lot of passion from this project.  I would like to 
address the survey; it was completed by a professional land surveyor.  
There is significant evidence to the property line, they are marked by 
iron pipes.  I will speak about the wetlands.  We have professionals on 
staff that are certified to determine wetlands with army Corp standards.  
The consultant that was hired, was not hired by my firm or the builder, 
they were hired by the town.   

Mr. Whittel:  Can you comment on the issue of safety and hydrant 
system?  

Mr. Dannible: There are 4 with plenty of coverage.   

Mr. Whittel:  You showed us a picture of the wetlands, an overlay, and 
the disturbance area.  Can you comment on the buildable area for that 
home on lot 13?  Just want to make sure that building a home on this 
land does not disturb verified wetlands or concerned wetlands.   

Mr. Dannible:  Lot 13 is the largest lot; it is over 1 acre.  The buildable 
land is 1.29 acres.  It’s on the corner so it creates a larger lot.  No 
disturbance to wetland area.   

Chairman Bartow:  Regarding Mr. Dannible request to close the Public 
Hearing, I still have a couple of outstanding requests that I would like to 
see.  First, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for a wetland’s 
determination.  There have been enough questions about this, I know 
you and the engineer have been working on it.  Concerning the kiosks, I 
want to get the Post Masters approval, I am sure that this can get turned 
around quickly. The buffer on Greenfield, I would like to see a not cut 
and what your plan is.  
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Mr. Danible:  Those are items that we can address.  The mail kiosk is not 
an issue, they do many of these.  I have two requests for tonight.  I 
would like to see the Public Hearing closed, there has not been much 
new information that has been presented.  I see no reason for the Board 
not to make a motion on closing the Public Hearing.  Considering the 
approval, if it is made we will accept it with conditions.  A confirmation 
of a no permit letter until there is confirmation with the Army Corps.  
We can work on correspondence with the Post Office regarding the 
Kiosk.   We can make those conditions with any approvals as well as the 
buffers. These are relatively minor conditions.  This project won’t start 
till Fall 2022.  

Chairman Bartow:  My request is to have you waive the 62-day time 
clock, until these matters are addressed.  

Mr. Dannible:  The 62 days from when the public Hearing is closed?   
That is a reasonable request, but not indefinite.   Postpone all decisions 
until the Board is satisfied with the information that is provided.   

Chairman Bartow:  If we receive additional information on these 
matters, we will than be able to open the Public Hearing back up.   Once 
you get us everything the 62-day time frame will begin.         I will 
entertain a Motion to close the public hearing for 240 Greenfield 
Ave. major subdivision, with the conditions of information from 
the Army Corps, information on the buffer, approval of the mail 
kiosk and 62-day time clock be suspended.   First, Mr. Whittel, 
Second, Mr. Marsicano any discussion; please poll the Board Mr. 
Marsicano Yes, Mr. Lebarron Yes; Mr. Collins Yes; Ms. VanDeinse Yes; Mr. Whittel Yes; 
Chairman Bartow Yes 
 

6. David Emigh – 405 Geyser Road - Special Use Permit Application – 190.7-1-45  

Next, we have applications for a Special Use Permit and Site Plan 
review for a Home Occupation 2 within the Town Center at 405 Geyser 
Rd. Mr. David Emigh first came before us in November with his 
proposal to build a garage and storage building for his vehicle 
detailing business.  He had to go before the ZBA for an area variance 
which he has done. 
 
Everyone should have before them: 

1. Special Use Permit Application dated 11/3/21 
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2. Site Plan Review Application dated 11/3/21 
3. SEAF Dated 10/29/21 
4. Buildings and Site Plans (undated) 
5. Existing Conditions Map dated 11/30/10 
6. SCPB Referral decision 1/24/22 
7. Correspondence to the ZBA from Harry Ungeheuer 1/26/22 
8. ZBA Resolution approving a rear setback variance of 11’ 

1/31/22 
9. Draft minutes of the ZBA meeting of 1/31/22 
10. Correspondence from Harry Ungeheuer 2/9/22 

 

Regarding SEQRA this is an Unlisted Action, and in November we 
made a Determination that this project will not have a significant 
impact on the environment and an environmental impact statement 
will not be prepared.   
 
Mr. Scott Duell would you please address the Board with Mr. Emigh’s 
project. 
 
Mr. Duell:  I am here tonight to answer any questions on the project 
and request to schedule a Public Hearing.  We are looking to add a 
building but keep everything else the same, the business, the look, and 
the hours.   
 
Chairman Bartow: Regarding the materials, are they going to match 
the existing house?   
 
Mr. Duell:  No, it is a steal constructed building.   It is 40x36 and the 
height is 22.8.  The material will not match the house, but the colors 
will.  I have looked at other options for the roof.  The company does 
have a material that will look like shingles.  As it goes forward, we are 
going to try to make it look as much as the house as we can.  There is 
a lot of diversity of buildings in town center.  We did speak about the 
Napa building and the plazas.  These different looks make it unique.    
 
Mr. Lewis do you have any additional information for the Board? 
 
Mr. Lewis:  I don’t currently.  
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Mr. Whittel:  Are you going to do any screening around the building?  
 
Mr. Duell:  we are looking into privacy fences, whatever works the 
best.  
 
Mr. Whittel:  Can you bring that information next time?  That should 
be considered part of the plan.  This will help the neighbors.  As far as 
the material, you should really consider what it is made of, we want it 
to blend into what is in the area.  Be complimentary to what is already 
on the property.   
 
Mr. Marsicano:  It would be nice to see exactly what the material is.   
 
Ms. VanDeinse:  Last time this project was before us I did ask to see a 
sample of materials from your vendor.  This concerns me, the last time 
the applicate was here, they spoke of changing the color of their house.   
 
Mr. Duell: We plan to have it match the house.  We are not changing 
the color of the house and the building will not be black.  I will try to 
get samples for you.   
 
Chairman Bartow:  Does the Board have any comments? Having 
completed our SEQRA for this project and scoped out our concerns, I 
will entertain a Motion to schedule a public hearing for a SUP and 
Site Plan Review for a Home Occupation 2 at 405 Geyser Rd. for 
7:05 p.m. on Wednesday 9th; Mr. Collins Second, Ms. VanDeinse 
any discussion; please Poll the Board. Mr. Marsicano Yes, Mr. Lebarron Yes; 
Mr. Collins Yes; Ms. VanDeinse Yes; Ms. Padula Yes; Mr. Whittel Yes; Chairman Bartow Yes 
 
 

7. Stomping Ground Camp – 3430 Boyhaven Road - Site Plan Review Application 

3430 – 162.-1-14.11 

Chairman Bartow: Next, we have before us an amendment to a 
special Use Permit and Site Plan for Camp Stomping Ground, 3430 
Boyahevn Rd.  Their request is to change their months of operation 
to March through December and the summer camps capacity from 
150 to 250.   
 
Everyone should have before them: 

1. A site Plan review application dated 1/25/22 
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2. An Agricultural Date Statement dated 1/25/22 
3. SEAF Part 1 and 2 dated 1/25/22 
4. Special Use Permit application 2/7/22 
5. An Agricultural Data Statement 2/7/22 

 
Is there a representative of Camp Stomping Ground who can present 
the project to the Board? 
 
Ms. Laura Kriegel:  Owner and Founder of Camp Stomping Ground.  I 
am here to request the approval of capacity and hours of operation.   
We have renovated the buildings and started this amazing camp.  
Come spring we want to increase the number of campers and hold 
special events.   
 
Mr. Whittel:  You are going to increase your timeline. Originally, this 
camp was to be a summer camp, this is a bit longer than what we had 
discussed.    Are there any changes that we need to see to be able to 
accommodate this up to December?  
 
Ms. Kriegel:  No, mostly, we are looking at Boy scout Troops that 
would like to rent the facility.  There will be no new buildings at this 
time.   
 
Chairman Bartow:  What about bathroom facilities that can freeze.  
Do we need to be concerned about this?  
 
Ms. Kriegel:  Currently we have latrines that people can use.  This is 
rough camping.   
 
Mr. Whittel:  What about access roads for the winter?  Are they 
suitable for emergency vehicles?  
 
Ms. Kreigel:  We do have an access road that can be plowed.  The 
road is suitable for emergency vehicles.   
 
Chairman Bartow:  Pursuant to Section 180-52 does the Board want 
to see for reviewing this Site Plan?  Chance there may be no site plan 
necessary.  If you could bring copies of the previous site plan to us 
that would be great.  We may not need anything else due to the 
request.   
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Mr. Whittle:  The site plan is still valid; we have to make sure that the 
new use, is still contained within the site plan.  That’s where her 
presentation should be focused.   
 
Chairman Bartow:  Present how you are going to accommodate 100 
more campers during those periods of time.  So, give us what John 
Munter presented previously.  I will consider waiving the fee if we 
don’t have to change the site plan.  We will also have to do a Public 
Hearing.   
 
Regarding SEQRA this is an Unlisted Action.  I will entertain a Motion 
to declare the Town of Milton Planning Board Lead Agency; Mr. 
Whittel, Second; Ms. VanDeinse any discussion; please poll the 
Board. Mr. Marsicano Yes, Ms. Padula, Mr. Lebarron Yes; Mr. Collins Yes; Ms. VanDeinse 
Yes; Yes; Mr. Whittel Yes; Chairman Bartow Yes 
 
 
Chairman Bartow:  I will now read the 11 Question on Part 2 of the 
SEAF.  There being no moderate to large impacts I will entertain a 
Motion that the proposed action will not result in any significant 
adverse environmental impacts and an Environmental Impact 
Statement will not be prepared.  Ms. VanDeinse, Second, Mr. 
Whittel any discussion; please poll the Board. Mr. Marsicano Yes, Mr. 
Lebarron Yes; Mr. Collins Yes; Ms. Padula, Ms. VanDeinse Yes; Ms. Stevens Yes; Mr. Whittel 
Yes; Chairman Bartow Yes 
 
 
I will entertain a Motion to conduct a public hearing for a Special 
Use Permit and Site Plan Approval at 7:10 pm on March 9th; Ms. 
VanDeinse, Second, Mr. Whittel any discussion; please poll the 
Board. Mr. Marsicano Yes, Ms. Padula, Yes Mr. Lebarron Yes; Mr. Collins Yes; Ms. 
VanDeinse Yes; Ms. Stevens Yes; Mr. Whittel Yes; Chairman Bartow Yes 
 
 

8. Jointa Lime Company – Special Use Permit - 431 Route 29 – 164.-1-19, Site Plan 

Application 164.-1-20 

Chairman Bartow: Our next project this evening is for a Site Plan 
Approval and Special Use Permit for a quarry on NYS Route 29 by the 
Jointa Lime Company.  This is a big project along with some unique 
regulatory coordination that must occur between the Town and The 
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Department of Environmental Conservation.  There is a coordinated 
review on going and we think that DEC may want Lead Agency status 
which would likely be fine with us. 
 
I’d like Bill Keniry to explain how this review will go.   
 

Mr. Keniry:  It is generally thought that there are laws that pertain to 
miners that supersede what we are typically used to.  The first item 
that will have to be sorted out is lead agency, that will be figured out 
with DEC.  This is clearly subject to state jurisdiction.  I would suggest 
that the Board members that they keep the following in mind for this 
project regarding special permit.   
-Ingress and egress to public thoroughfares shall be controlled by the Town. 

-Routing of mineral transport vehicles on roads shall be controlled by the Town. 

-Requirements and conditions as specified in the permit issued by DEC 

concerning setback from property boundaries and public thoroughfare rights-of-

way, natural or man-made barriers to restrict access, dust control and hours of 

operation. 

-Enforcement of reclamation requirements contained in DEC permits issued 

pursuant to the Mined Land Reclamation Law.[2] 

 

 This evening is a conceptual review and opportunity for us to learn 
about the project.  Who would like to present on behalf of the 
applicant? 
 
Joe Dannible- We are here for a proposed application for a Quarry, 
435 Route 29.   Here with Dave Santos & Jeff Langs, they are the 
consultants putting together the mines Use Plan.  Under town law 
this is a Site Plan Review and a Special Use Permit.  Here is an overall 
view on what we are proposing on the property.   The property is 
slightly less than 100 acres.  This is a project that fits into the 
adjacent properties that are also rock quarries.  The land has some 
diplography to it.  There is a farm and 2 structures on the property.  
The mine itself will encompass 70 acres of land.  That has been 
submitted to the DEC.  Most concern to the Town is what is located 
outside of the property adjacent to route 29.  We are proposing a 
modification to the curb cut on route 29.  One main access road.  We 
have started the traffic study for this property.  Would be serviced by 
septic system and on site well.  Will supplement area with additional 

https://ecode360.com/9165554?highlight=ingress&searchId=5600553935726250#ft9165630-2
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plantings or shielding as needed.  As the project progresses, we will 
move west on the property. There are a lot more details and 
documentation that has been provided.   
 
Mr. Marsicano:  What is the timing from start to finish?  
 
Mr. Dannible: In the order of 40 or 50 years.   
 
Mr. Marsicano: Time of operation 
 
Mr. Dannible:  5 am- 9pm. Blasting will be done during the daytime 
hours.    
 
Chairman Bartow: Do any of the Board members have any 
questions or comment at this point? 
There being no further comments we will work on the coordinated 
review and have our engineer and attorney advise us when we will 
see this project again. 
 
Mr. Dannible: It is our participation to come up with that 
determination between the town, engineers, and attorneys.  If there 
is any opportunity to have a meeting outside this room to get the 
process established and moving in the right direction that would be 
helpful.  This would help us be proactive and productive.    
 

9. Milton Town Solar Project- Special Use Permit and Site Plan Application – 209 Stone 

Church Road – 176.-2-20, 176.-2-21 

Chairman Bartow:  Next, we have applications for Site Plan Review 
and Special use Permit for a 5 MW solar farm at 209 Stone Church Rd. 
Property owned by Donald Rathbun. Milton Solar LLC, a subsidiary 
company of Atlas Renewables LLC, is proposing the solar farm with a 
connection Brook Rd. substation.  We last saw this project on 
12/15/21 and directed our engineer to commence a coordinated 
review and referred the applicant to the ZBA for appropriate area 
variance needs. Our engineer did not, and has not, commence the 
coordinated review because the applicant has not responded to the 
comments our engineer had on SEQRA.  We are also aware that a 
different EAF has been filed with DEC but has not been filed with us. 
 
Everyone should have before them: 
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1. Special Use Permit Application dated 12/1/21 
2. Site Plan Review dated 21/1/21 
3. Project Narrative dated 21/1/21 
4. FEAF Part 1 dated 11/24/21 
5. Opinion from NYS OPRHP dated 10/5/21 
6. Site Plans dated 12/1/21 
7. MJ Engineering Comments dated 12/14/21 
8. Letter from NYS DEC dated 2/2/22 asking if the Town of 

Milton Planning Board wanted Lead agency status. 
 
Is Mr. Lluis Torrent or another representative of the project here to 
present their proposal? 
 
Mr. Lluis: Here is a summary.  Submitted project on December 1, 2021.  
On December 15 we introduced the project to the Board. If we have 
both parcels, we will be below the 10%.  We went to the Zoning Board 
on the issue of National Grid zoning.  We will go before the Zoning 
Board again in March regarding these two parcels, one of the parcels 
is land locked.   Trying to get 30 feet of right of way between these two 
parcels.  We have submitted documents, after the cut off date, but 
these documents will answer questions that Board and MJ 
Engineering may have up till this point.   
 
The applicant has gone before the ZBA regarding an area variance.  But 
we have not been able to advance our SEQRA Lead Agency status or 
Determination of Significance.   
Mr. Keniry where do we stand with the ZBA? How much further can 
the ZBA go without SEQRA being completed? 
 
Mr. Keniry: It was determined at the last Zoning Board meeting they 
would schedule a Public Hearing for February 24th.  However, that was 
with the understanding that coordinated review would be started and 
the 30-day period would expire.  At this point it is at risk of how far 
the ZBA can go to act on this application until SEQRA is complete.  
 
Joel Bianchi:  One concern is the decommissioning estimate.  The 
monetary value that they sent us is the lowest that the Town has seen 
to date.  I advise the applicant that these numbers are insufficient, and 
they need to rework the number.   
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Mr. Torrent:  Our design is different to other Solar projects.  The pull 
out of these polls is simpler.  That is why our proposal may seem low, 
but it is aligned with our design.   
 
Chairman Bartow: Joel, we will leave this one hold until you give us 
guidance and can resolve the outstanding issues.  I will inform the 
Board if this can get before us next month. 
 

10. Amending section 180-38 of Zoning Code, hooves animals.   

Chairman Bartow: As I shared with you last month the Town Board 
has referred a zoning amendment for Section 180—38 relating to 
Farm Animals on non-farm operation parcels.  I shared that with you 
at our January meeting.  I have also shared with you a draft 
recommendation from me to the Town Board outlining some 
comments.  Want to discuss this and maybe come up with a final 
submission.  Document attached.   
 
I have a list of many lots that are under 5 acres in zoning.   
 
I would say limiting the livestock to one animal to every 2 acres is 
somewhat arbitrary, does anyone know where that came from? This 
is a challenge for both the Town Board and Planning Board.  These 
are just some thoughts.    
 
Does anyone have questions or comments concerning this referral? 
 
Mr. Whittel: When you are dealing with agricultural, there are not the 
same restrictions.  Farm animals are not restricted to being in 
unconforming land.  The more animals that you put on these 
properties the more structures you are going to have to provide for 
them.  If you keep the current limits, then there is some degree of 
control, but it is arbitrary.  If you open it up, how is it going to be 
evaluated.  This is going to require a bit more thought.   
 
Mr. Mancini:  You may want to reach out to Tuck Curtis in the town of 
Ballston.  Town of Ballston has no restrictions and they have not 
experienced any issues.  There may be some under sized lots but 
when you buy property in the R2 zone there should be a document 
that lets the homeowner know what the R2 zone is and what to 
expect.   
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Chairman Bartow:  This is a planning board issue because every 
time a Zoning code is amended, Planning must give its 
recommendations.   
 
Mr. Keniry:  One thing to consider is the effect on other regulations.   
 
Mr. Mancini: For example, if you have 4 acres of land and you want to 
buy 3 head of cattle and then get into a dispute with your neighbor.  
the neighbor knows I only have 4 acres, but I should have 6 for this 
number of animals.  Now they can file a report and I can get a ticket.  
However, if you have 4 good acres of land, 3 cattle that you are going 
to keep for 8 months and then butcher, don’t you think that he four 
acres of land can handle that.  Putting these restrictions in place 
based on lot size is not recommended.  There are so many things to 
think about.   
 
Chairman Bartow:  Lets continue to circulate and come to an 
agreement.  I don’t think that we are going against the general intent.   
 

11. Other Business 

No other new business to be brought before the Board this evening.  
 

12. Adjourn 

There being no other business before the Board, I will entertain a 
Motion to adjourn; Second, any discussion; all in favor say eye. 
Adjourned:  10:31pm 
 

COVID-19 Note:  NYS Executive Order No. 202.1 (as amended/extended) suspends Article 7 of the Public 

Officers Law (also known as the Open Meetings Law), to the extent necessary to permit any public body to 

meet and take such actions authorized by law without allowing the public to be physically present at the 

meeting.  The order also authorizes public bodies to meet remotely by conference call or similar service. 

For the Public Hearing Agenda Items during these unprecedented conditions, the Planning Board will 

provide the public reasonable and meaningful opportunities to submit comments via online 

videoconferencing technology during the meeting and in writing via email or mailed written comments. 

Written Comments can be provided by emailing Planningandzoningclerk@townofmiltonny.org or  by mail 

to:  Town of Milton Planning Board, 503 Geyser Rd. Ballston Spa, NY 12020.  All written comments 

received by 5 p.m. on February , 2022, will be provided in advance of the meeting to the Planning Board 

Members for their consideration.  

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89862084468?pwd=NkcvY3kwakF6TmdPc0docEVuOGxQQT09 

mailto:Planningandzoningclerk@townofmiltonny.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89862084468?pwd=NkcvY3kwakF6TmdPc0docEVuOGxQQT09
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OR by telephone US: +1-646-558-8656 or +1-301-715-8592 or +1-312-626-6799 
Webinar ID: 813 1602 2898 
Passcode: 191836 
 


